
 

For information relating to this meeting or to request a copy in another format or 
language please contact: 

Lisa Antrobus, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  
01803 207064 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk 

www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 

Friday, 19 May 2017 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

A meeting of Audit Committee will be held on 
 

Wednesday, 31 May 2017 
 

commencing at 2.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held in the Meadfoot Room, Town Hall, Castle Circus, 
Torquay, TQ1 3DR 

 
 

Members of the Committee 

Councillor Bent 

Councillor Barnby 

Councillor O'Dwyer 

 

Councillor Stocks 

Councillor Stringer 

Councillor Tyerman 

 

 

 

A prosperous and healthy Torbay 

mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/


(2) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Election of Chairman/woman  
 To elect a Chairman/woman for the 2017/2018 Municipal Year. 

 
2.   Appointment of Vice-Chairman/woman  
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman/woman for the 2017/2018 Municipal 

Year. 
 

3.   Apologies  
 To receive any apologies for absence, including notifications of any 

changes to the membership of the Committee. 
 

4.   Minutes (Pages 4 - 6) 
 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Audit Committee held on 23 March 2017. 
 

5.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

6.   Urgent Items  
 To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 
7.   Audit Committee Terms of Reference (Pages 7 - 9) 
 To note the Audit Committee’s Term of Reference as approved at 

the Adjourned Annual Council meeting on 10 May 2017 and set out 
in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
 



(3) 

8.   Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017 (Pages 10 - 29) 
 To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/2017. 

 
9.   Treasury Management Outturn Report (To Follow) 
 To consider a report on the above. 

 
10.   Progress Report and Update Year ended 31 March 2017 (Pages 30 - 38) 
 To note a report that provides an update on progress made by 

Grant Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s 
external auditors. 
 



 
 

Minutes of the Audit Committee 
 

22 March 2017 
 

-: Present :- 
 

Councillor Tyerman (Chairman) 

 

Councillors Bent, O'Dwyer (Vice-Chair), Stocks and Darling (S) 
 
 

 
81. Apologies  

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Barnby. 
 

82. Minutes  
 
The Minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 18 January 2017 were 
confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

83. Urgent Items  
 
The Committee considered the items in Minutes 84 and 90 and not included on the 
agenda, the Chairman being of the opinion that they were urgent by reason of 
special circumstances i.e. the matter having arisen since the agenda was 
prepared and it was unreasonable to delay a decision until the next meeting. 
 

84. Report Admitting New Partners to the Devon Audit Partnership  
 
Members noted a report that set out the process for Devon Audit Partnership 
Committee to agree the inclusion of new members.  The inclusion of new 
members is subject to approval by both the Management Board and Partnership 
Board and terms and conditions determined by the Partnership. 
 

85. Internal Audit Plan 2017-18  
 
Members noted the Internal Audit Plan for 2017-18 which represents the proposed 
internal audit activity for the year and an outline scope of coverage.  The scope of 
each audit is discussed and agreed with management with a view to providing 
management, the Head of Finance and members with assurance on the control 
framework to manage the risks identified.  Members noted that the number of days 
allocated to Transformation had increased.  The Head of the Devon Audit 
Partnership advised that Internal Audit had been involved with the Transformation 
agenda from the outset as a trusted advisor providing assurance throughout.  The 
Assistant Director of Corporate and Business Services advised that the 
implementation of MyView was a good example of Internal Audit testing processes 
as the decisions were made. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 22 March 2017 
 

 

 
Members referred to fraud prevention and detection in particular fraud related to 
Blue Badges.  Members were advised that Blue Badge fraud had not been 
investigated for a number of years a situation which had also been raised by the 
Executive Head of Business Services.  Members welcomed the suggestion that 
the Council’s Fraud Officer, be invited to attend a future meeting of the Audit 
Committee to present the Fraud Strategy and provide details of priority work 
areas. 
 

86. Internal Audit Strategy  
 
Members noted the Internal Audit Strategy, the strategy is a high-level statement 
of how the internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance 
with the Internal Audit Charter and how it links to the organisational objective and 
priorities.  The Head of Devon Audit Partnership informed Members that following 
completion of a self-assessment checklist against the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) and external validation of the partnership, the overall opinion 
was that the Devon Audit Partnership ‘generally conforms’, which Members noted, 
was the top rating for the assessment. 
 

87. Internal Audit Charter  
 
The Audit Committee noted the Internal Audit Charter which formally described the 
purpose, authority and principal responsibilities of the Council’s Internal Audit 
Service.  Members requested that a future iteration be more explicit in referencing 
its responsibility to Members as well as management. 
 

88. The Audit Plan for Torbay Council  
 
Members noted the Audit Plan for Torbay Council.  Members were informed that 
the Audit Plan sets out an overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, 
aids understanding of the consequences of the work undertaken by the Council’s 
External Auditors, and discusses issues of risk and the concept of materiality.  
Members noted that the plan set out the key risks regarding the Value for Money 
(VFM) conclusion, these risks include the Ofsted inspection of Children’s Services 
and the medium term financial planning reviews of key documents such as the 
Efficiency Plan.  The conclusion of this piece of work will be included in the Audit 
Findings Report and Annual Audit Letter. 
 

89. Audit Committee Update  
 
Members noted the submitted report which set out the progress made by Grant 
Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s external auditors. 
 
Members made particular reference to the Apprenticeship Levy and requested the 
Human Resources Manager to present a report to a future meeting of the Audit 
Committee in order for Members to gain assurance that the Council will be in a 
good position to make the best use of the £15,000 allowance provided to offset 
against payment of the levy. 
 

Page 5



Audit Committee   Wednesday, 22 March 2017 
 

 

90. Work Programme  
 
At the Audit Committee on 18 January 2017, Members requested officers to 
realign the work programme in order to try and reduce the number of meetings for 
the year.  A work programme was circulated and Members requested the Annual 
Calendar be updated in line with the circulated work plan. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman/woman 

Page 6



Audit Committee: 
 
Terms of Reference: 
 
 
1. To consider the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report and opinion, and a 

summary of Internal Audit activity (actual and proposed) and the level of 
assurance it can give over the Council’s corporate governance arrangements. 

 
2. To consider summaries of specific Internal Audit reports as requested. 
 
3. To consider reports dealing with the management and performance of the 

providers of Internal Audit Services. 
 
4. To consider a report from Internal Audit on agreed recommendations not 

implemented within a reasonable timescale. 
 
5. To consider the External Auditor’s Annual Letter, relevant reports, and the 

report to those charged with governance. 
 
6. To consider specific reports as agreed with the External Auditor. 
 
7. To comment on the scope and depth of external audit work and to ensure it 

gives value for money. 
 
8. To liaise with the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd over the appointment of 

the Council’s external auditor. 
 
9. To commission work from Internal and External Audit within approved 

resources. 
 

6 members of the Council 
excluding members of the 
Executive, in accordance with the 
political balance requirements 
 
Conservative (4) 
 
Liberal Democrat (2) 
 

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 7



10. To support the Council’s compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Treasury Management in Public Services including the role as nominated 
Committee to be responsible for ensuring effective scrutiny of the treasury 
management strategy and policies. 
 

Regulatory Framework 
 
11. To maintain a strategic overview of the Council’s Constitution in respect of 

contract procedure rules, financial regulations and codes of conduct and 
behaviour (the primary responsibility for considering and ensuring that the 
constitution is fit for purpose lies with the Monitoring Officer and the Standards 
Committee in relation to the codes of conduct).  
 

12. To maintain a strategic overview of the Council’s compliance with the prevailing 
Accounts and Audit Regulations. 
 

13. To review any issue referred to it by the Chief Executive, a Director, the 
Monitoring officer, Section 151 Officer (Chief Finance Officer) or any Council 
body. 

 
14. To monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and 

corporate governance in the Council. 
 
15. To monitor council policies on ‘Raising Concerns at Work’ and the ‘Anti-fraud 

and corruption strategy’ and the Council’s complaints process. 
 
 
16. To consider the findings of reviews of the effectiveness of the system of internal 

control including the Annual Governance Statement and to recommend its 
adoption. 

 

P
age 8



17. To oversee the Council’s arrangements for corporate governance and consider 
necessary actions to ensure compliance with best practice. 

 
18. To review the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
19. To monitor the Council’s compliance with its own and other published standards 

and controls. 
 

20. To maintain a strategic overview of the Council’s compliance with the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). 

 
Accounts 
 
21. To consider the External Auditor’s report to those charged with governance on 

issues arising from the audit of the accounts. 
 

22. On behalf of the Council, to consider and approve the annual statement of 
accounts. 

 
 

P
age 9



 

 
 
 
Meeting:   Audit Committee Date:  31 May 2017 
 
Wards Affected:   All 
 
Report Title:   Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017 
 
Is the decision a key decision? No 
 
When does the decision need to be implemented?  Immediately 
 
Executive Lead Contact Details: Councillor Mills, Deputy Mayor and Executive 

Lead for Governance, Derek.mills@torbay.gov.uk  
 
Supporting Officer Contact Details: Kate Spencer, Corporate Support Manager
 01803 207014 kate.spencer@torbay.gov.uk 
 

 
1. Proposal and Introduction 
 
1.1 The preparation of the Annual Governance Statement provides the opportunity for 

the organisation to review its processes, controls and objectives and to provide 
assurance to Members, Senior Officers and stakeholders as to the reliability of its 
statement of accounts and the probity of its operations.  Regulations require every 
local authority, as good practice, to include in their annual Statement of Accounts 
an Annual Governance Statement signed by the Elected Mayor and the Chief 
Executive. 
 

1.2 The Statement is wide ranging and sets out publicly the extent to which the Council 
complies with its own code of corporate governance, including how it monitored 
and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year and on 
any planned changes in the coming year.  The Statement also fulfils the statutory 
requirement in England for a local authority to conduct a review at least once in 
each financial year of the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to 
include a statement reporting on the review with its Statement of Accounts. 

 
2. Reason for Proposal 
 
2.1 To meet the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations. 
 
3. Recommendation(s) / Proposed Decision 
 
3.1 That the draft Annual Governance Statement for 2016/2017 be agreed and 

forwarded to the External Auditors for comment. 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Derek.mills@torbay.gov.uk
mailto:kate.spencer@torbay.gov.uk


3.2 That the final Annual Governance Statement be presented to the Audit Committee 
when it considers the Statement of Accounts. 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1:  Draft Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017 
Appendix 2:  Corporate Plan and Delivery Plans 2015-2019 – Achievements 2016/2017 
 
Background Documents  
 
None 

Page 11



1 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2016/2017 

Scope of responsibility  

Torbay Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is 
safeguarded, properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and 
effectively.  Torbay Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to 
make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness.  

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk.  

Torbay Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government.  A copy of the code is on the Council’s website at 
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s39334/32%20Code%20of%20

Corporate%20Governance.pdf.This statement explains how Torbay Council has 
complied with the code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
(England) Regulations 2015 in relation to the publication of a statement on internal 
control.  

The purpose of the governance framework  

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values, by 
which the authority is directed and controlled, and its activities through which it 
accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It enables the authority to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those 
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost effective services.  

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed 
to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to 
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and 
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on 
an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
Torbay Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those 
risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically.  

The governance framework has been in place at Torbay Council throughout the year 
ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts.  

Page 12

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 1

http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s39334/32%20Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance.pdf
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/DemocraticServices/documents/s39334/32%20Code%20of%20Corporate%20Governance.pdf


2 
 

The Governance Framework  

The Constitution 

The Constitution sets out the main elements of the governance framework of Torbay 
Council, in particular how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed 
to ensure that these are efficient and transparent and that decision makers are 
accountable to local people.  It explains that the Council is made up of the Elected 
Mayor and 36 Councillors who, together, are responsible for approving the Council’s 
Budget and Policy Framework.  The Mayor is responsible for decisions which are 
consistent with the Budget and Policy Framework and is supported by Executive Lead 
Members who oversee and advise on specific areas.  Matters outside the Budget and 
Policy Framework are referred to the Council for decision. 

The Constitution includes Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and the Scheme of 
Delegated Powers and is available on the Council’s website.  It is underpinned by 
Codes of Conduct for Members and Employees and a range of local protocols.  The 
Constitution includes the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance.   

The Overview and Scrutiny Board is responsible for the overview and scrutiny 
function of the Council.  It assists in the development of policy and holds decision 
makers to account.  In addition, any five members of the Council can “call-in” 
executive decisions to the Overview and Scrutiny Board for further debate. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for all internal and external audit matters, 
treasury management as well as monitoring the effective development and 
operation of performance and risk management and corporate governance in the 
Council.  It meets on a bi-monthly basis. 

The Standards Committee’s remit includes the conduct of members and investigating 
complaints in respect of individual members.  The Standards Committee promotes 
and embeds ethical standards for members. 

Some regulatory functions remain the responsibility of the Council rather than the 
Mayor and most of these are delegated to a small number of committees appointed 
annually by the Council. 

All members are inducted into the importance and processes of good governance 
and have informal and, if required, formal ways of raising governance issues with the 
Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer, Chief Finance Officer and the Senior Leadership 
Team.  

The Corporate Plan and Decision-making 

Included within the Policy Framework is the Council’s Corporate Plan which is the 
main strategic document under which all other Policy Framework documents sit.  
During the course of the year, the Delivery Plans associated with the Corporate Plan 
were adopted.  The Council also has a Medium Term Resource Plan which is 
reviewed on an on-going basis to take into account new information and changed 

Page 13



3 
 

circumstances.  Both of these documents provide a framework for planning and 
monitoring resource requirements. 

The Corporate Plan and the Medium Term Resource Plan formed the basis of the 
Council’s Efficiency Plan which was submitted to Government in October 2016.  The 
Efficiency Plan sets out the details of the Council’s Transformation Programme (as it 
was at that date). 

The Mayor has established Policy Development and Decision Groups which (amongst 
other things) receive reports and make recommendations to the Mayor on Executive 
decisions.  The Mayor then, in the majority of cases, takes those decisions at 
meetings of the Policy Development and Decision Group.  All reports to members 
include sections on the financial and legal implications and the risks of the proposed 
decision.  Prior to publication, these reports are cleared by the Chief Finance Officer 
and the Monitoring Officer or one of their senior staff. 

All meetings are open to the public but a small number of matters are considered in 
private when the press and public are formally excluded from meetings.  It is the 
Council’s objective to keep these private matters to a minimum with only those 
elements of reports that are considered exempt from publication being included 
within appendices.  This ensures open and transparent decision making is 
undertaken at all times. 

The Member Development Programme provides a structured approach to member 
development to ensure all members are supported in their roles.  In addition to the 
Personal Development Plans, Members have the opportunity to have a one to one 
Councillor Development discussion with their Group Leader/Mayor.  The purpose of 
these reviews is to discuss each member’s progress and how they can contribute in 
meeting the Council’s priorities. 

Community and Service User Engagement 

There are also a number of Community Partnerships across Torbay which provide an 
opportunity for people who live or work in the different parts of Torbay to discuss 
issues of common concern, influence the way in which services are provided and 
improve their local area.  

In developing proposals for service change, consultation with service users and the 
public is undertaken.  In particular, the impact on vulnerable groups and those with 
characteristics protected under the Equality Act 2012 is assessed and documented in 
Equality Impact Assessments which are considered by decision-makers prior to 
decisions being made. 

Partnership Working 

The Torbay Strategic Partnership has been re-established and the Council is 
scheduled to approve the Place Narrative which sets out the Partnership’s vision for 
Torbay in the future. 

Page 14



4 
 

The Health and Wellbeing Board and the Community Safety Partnership provide 
forums where multi-agency issues which impact on the Torbay population can be 
debated.  Safeguarding Boards are also in place for both children and adults. 

The Council owns (either in its own right or with partners) a number of companies, 
namely the Torbay Economic Development Company (TDA), TOR2, Careers South 
West and Oldway Management Company.  The Council has representatives on the 
Boards of these companies together with a number of reserved matters which are 
set out in the Articles of Association and Memorandum of Understanding.   

Appropriate performance and monitoring arrangements are also in place in respect 
of service specific partnerships such as the Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation 
Trust and the Torbay Coast and Countryside Trust. 

The Council is also pursuing other partnership opportunities such as the Plymouth 
and South West Peninsula City Deal and devolution across Devon and Somerset.  In 
addition, the Council is working with partners on the Wider Devon Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan and the Better Care Fund. 

Performance and Risk Management 

The Council records performance information using performance-reporting software 
called SPAR.net.  The Senior Leadership Team receive quarterly updates on 
performance and risk.  These updates are also shared with the Mayor and Executive, 
Group Leaders and the Audit Committee.  Any areas of concern are highlighted and 
appropriate corrective action will be considered, scrutinised and monitored.  The 
Council also uses a range of benchmarking information to measure performance 
against comparators and to identify authorities from whom the Council could learn. 

The Senior Leadership Team is responsible for the implementation and monitoring of 
the Performance and Risk Framework.  A Strategic Risk Register is maintained which 
identifies strategic risks facing the Authority together with clearly identified 
measures for mitigation.  Directors and Executive Heads are responsible for 
managing risk within their Business Units. 

Senior Management 

The Head of the Paid Service is the Chief Executive who is responsible and 
accountable to the Council for all aspects of operational management. 

The Head of Finance is the Chief Financial Officer.  He has direct access to all 
members, the Chief Executive and senior officers of the Council.  He works with 
Directors and Executive Heads to identify any financial issues which may require 
management action.  Regular discussions are held with the Mayor who is the 
Executive Member with responsibility for finance.  The Chief Finance Officer has 
responsibility for ensuring the Council operates secure and reliable financial and 
accounting systems.   

Page 15



5 
 

Members are briefed on key financial issues with revenue and capital budget 
monitoring reports being considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Board and the 
Council on a regular basis.  The Council agrees the Treasury Management Strategy on 
an annual basis on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 

The Assistant Director – Corporate and Business Services is the Monitoring Officer.  
She is responsible to the Council for ensuring that agreed procedures and protocols 
are followed and that all applicable Statutes and Regulations are complied with. 

The Head of the Paid Service, Chief Financial Officer and Monitoring Officer meet on 
a monthly basis to ensure that appropriate governance arrangements are in place. 

Officers in politically restricted posts and those responsible for negotiating contracts 
are required to register their personal interests. 

Training and Information 

The Torbay Managers Forum meets on a quarterly basis enabling all managers to be 
briefed on current issues, reflect on achievements and engage in the development of 
action plans, ensuring that best practice across the Authority is shared and that plans 
for the future are collectively owned.  Events known as “Connect” are routinely held 
which are open for all members of staff to attend to share their views with the Chief 
Executive and members of the Senior Leadership Team. 

Internal communication approaches have been reviewed and enhanced to ensure all 
staff are aware of issues and new policies and practices.  Newsletters and daily 
updates are sent to all staff to advise them of relevant information, HR policy and 
legislation changes.  Learning and Development courses that are available and 
support for staff are also included within these.   

There is a positive working relationship with Trades Unions through quarterly formal 
meetings and informal meetings with the Assistant Director – Corporate and 
Business Services and consultation where appropriate. 

The Council’s intranet contains a range of policies, procedures and guidance for all 
staff including Human Resources (HR) Policies, i-Learn training modules, Information 
Governance Policies, Code of Conduct, Freedom of Information Policy, Data 
Protection Policy and the Corporate Plan and Constitution. 

The Council has a Counter Fraud and Corruption Policy which is reviewed regularly 
and has been communicated to all staff and is available on the Council’s Intranet.  

Corporate training needs are identified through the Senior Leadership Team.  The 
Council has strongly supported staff development, particularly through programmes 
such as the Institute of Leadership and Management to develop Team Leaders and 
Managers. 

Change management training has been communicated to all staff, including senior 
management, to support their understanding and implementation of change.  

Page 16



6 
 

Coaching and counselling are also offered as an additional means of support to 
individuals.   

The Corporate Induction module on i-Learn signposts and informs new employees 
about the range of policies and procedures they need to be aware of, including the 
Code of Conduct, Information Governance, Acceptable Behaviour, Driver’s Policy and 
Handbook and Whistleblowing Policies.  Managers are responsible for local induction 
arrangements with corporate induction courses being run on a regular basis. 

Customer Feedback, Whistleblowing and Prevention of Fraud 

The Council has a customer feedback recording, tracking and reporting system to 
which all staff have access via the Intranet.  The system captures compliments, 
complaints, queries, enquiries and Local Government Ombudsman complaints. 
Letters from Members of Parliament as well as enquiries made through local 
councillors are also recorded through this system. 

The system enables all complaints to be recorded and tracked with root causes 
identified providing the Council with a useful analysis of why complaints are being 
received.  It also enables the tracking of the implementation of recommendations 
and actions. 

The Information Compliance Team report to the Senior Leadership Team on a 
quarterly basis, these reports include the type of complaint, service area, outcomes 
and any learning points.  This results in further actions being identified and 
implemented. 

The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy was agreed in July 2013 and is available on the 
Council’s website and intranet site.  The Council has an established phone line that 
any whistleblowing call can be made to and which goes directly to Internal Audit 
which has responsibility for dealing with these issues in the first instance.  The 
Probity and Ethics Group; comprising of the Monitoring Officer, the Chief Finance 
Officer, Internal Audit and the Head of Human Resources, continue to meet to 
consider and progress as appropriate all matters of concern. 

The Council has a Fraud and Counter Corruption Officer who is accountable to the 
Head of Finance.  The Council’s website enables members of the public to report any 
suspicions of anyone committing fraud or corruption. 

Information Management 

The Council holds and processes a significant amount of information.  It is critical 
that the information held is of good-quality, accurate and kept up-to-date to inform 
decision making.  Equally important is the requirement to process personal and 
sensitive information in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998.  To support 
this, there is an Information Governance Forum which outlines the Council’s 
approach to information management and sharing.  Under this framework there are 
a number of operational policies and procedures including a suite of information 

Page 17



7 
 

security policies. These policies are subject to regular review and updates 
communicated to all staff. 

The Council is currently reviewing and updating its Information Asset Register which 
specifies the information assets held across all Council departments and allows the 
Council to understand the risks associated with different information assets.  

Internal Audit 

The internal audit service is provided by Devon Audit Partnership (DAP). This is a 
shared service arrangement between Torbay, Torridge District, Plymouth City and 
Devon County Councils and is constituted under section 20 of the Local Government 
Act 2000.  Devon Audit Partnership undertakes the role of auditing the Council’s 
systems to give assurance to the organisation. 

The Council’s Internal Audit Plan, which is risk based, is agreed annually by the Head 
of Finance, Senior Leadership Team and the Council’s Audit Committee. This 
provides the basis for the review of internal control and governance within the 
Council and includes the following: -  

o Annual reviews of the Council’s key financial systems by Internal Audit 
against known and evolving risks.  

o Reviews of internal controls in operation within each service area against 
known and evolving risks based on a detailed risk assessment.  These 
reviews consider the strategic and operational risks identified in the 
Corporate Risk Register, as well as materiality, sensitivity and previous 
audit and inspection findings. 

o Work in relation to the investigation of any potential irregularities 
identified either from audit work or through the Council’s whistle-blowing 
policy.  

o Advice and support to ensure future safeguards when implementing new 
systems. 

o Value for money work in relation to assessing the efficiency, economy 
and effectiveness of the Council’s operations and recommending 
improvements as necessary. 

The Council also receives assurance from the NHS Internal Audit Confederation 
(Audit South West) over the controls in operation at Torbay and Southern Devon 
NHS Foundation Trust which covers the provision of adult social care services. 

Achievement against the Audit Plan is reported to the Audit Committee on a twice 
yearly basis. This report also includes an opinion and assurance about the system of 
internal control throughout the Council. 

Page 18



8 
 

Regular meetings are held between the Chief Finance Officer and a representative of 
the Devon Audit Partnership to discuss specific issues that have arisen. 

Review of Effectiveness  

Torbay Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control. 
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers 
within the Authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the governance environment, the Head of the Devon Audit Partnership’s annual 
report, and also by comments made by the External Auditors and other review 
agencies and inspectorates.  This review is demonstrated through the Annual 
Governance Statement. 

As in previous years, Devon Audit Partnership undertook certain assurance work on 
behalf of the Council and to give assurance to the external auditors as part their 
audit opinion. 

The effectiveness of the governance framework has been evaluated over the course 
of the year against the seven core principles within Torbay Council’s Code of 
Corporate Governance.  Details of the evaluation is included in the sections which 
follow.  Whilst some governance issues have been identified (and are detailed 
below), the Council believes that its arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for 
purpose in accordance with the governance framework. 

Focusing on the purpose of the authority and on outcomes for the local community 
and creating and implementing a vision for the local area 

The Council’s Corporate Plan was adopted in September 2015 with the associated 
Delivery Plans adopted in May 2016.  The Delivery Plans set out the challenges faced 
by the Council, where it aims to be in 2019 and the areas on which the Council will 
focus.  The Performance and Risk Dashboards set out how the Council will measure 
its performance towards meeting the ambitions of the Corporate Plan and the 
actions in the Delivery Plans.  This will include progress against each action within 
the Delivery Plans and an identification of the priorities for the coming months. 

The Council has established a Strategic Partnership for Torbay and developed 
“Vision:  Torbay” which sets out the long term aspirations for Torbay.  It is proposed 
that this will form an Annex to the Council’s Corporate Plan.  

Discussions are taking place, in the context of wider public sector financial 
constraints, as to how the Council’s relationship with the Integrated Care 
Organisation will be financially supported moving forward. 

Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly 
defined functions and roles 

The Council’s Constitution has been continually reviewed throughout the year by the 
Monitoring Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Governance Support Manager in 

Page 19



9 
 

consultation with the Mayor and Group Leaders whereby improvements and 
changes to the constitution are made and agreed.  During the course of the year, the 
Council’s Financial Regulations and Contract Procedures were reviewed and 
expanded. 

The Members’ Development Programme has been refreshed and is supplemented by 
Councillor Conversations which take place to provide an informal opportunity to 
discuss forthcoming decisions.  The Mayor and Group Leaders meet monthly to 
discuss a range of issues aimed at working better together. 

In November 2015, Torbay Council welcomed a Local Government Association 
review team to undertake a Corporate Peer Challenge to specifically challenge the 
financial viability of the Council and the effectiveness of its leadership and 
governance arrangements.  In response to the recommendations, the Council 
implemented an action plan.   

The LGA’s Principal Advisor and Challenge Manager, along with several members of 
the original peer team, have visited the Council on a number of occasions since the 
action plan was produced to help, advise and review progress directly with the 
Council.  As part of this process, it was agreed that a follow-up day would be 
arranged and this took place in September 2016. 

The report from the follow-up day shows that the LGA found some positive member 
and officer relationships but that there were also some tensions.  The LGA’s clear 
advice was that there needs to be “a consistent political purpose which officers can 
then put their collective energy into delivering” with clarity as the roles and 
responsibilities.  To address this finding, senior officers are focussing on supporting 
the Executive and Council to develop the Policy Framework so as to set a clear 
strategic direction.  Further, the action plans associated with the Policy Framework 
provide clarity to officers in implementing Council policy. 

As a result of the follow-up day, a finance review was commissioned and undertaken 
in November 2016.  The recommendations from the review have been incorporated 
in the action plan which continues to be delivered. 

Promoting values for the authority and demonstrating the values of good 
governance through upholding high standards of conduct and behaviour 

The Standards Committee has been re-appointed and met twice during 2016/2017. 
The Monitoring Officer continues to meet regularly with the Independent Person 
(appointed to assist the Standards Committee in the Member Complaint Process) to 
hear their views and opinions on various matters relating to Members’ conduct.  The 
Independent Person assisted with a number of complaints and provided views 
throughout an investigation that was subsequently considered by a Standards 
Hearing Sub-Committee.  

The Council’s Code of Conduct, Information Governance, Whistleblowing and 
Acceptable Behaviour policies are available for all staff on the HR intranet page.  
They are also referred to within employees’ terms and conditions of employment 

Page 20



10 
 

and are binding upon employees during the course of their employment with the 
Council.  Reminders are sent out to staff via newsletters and internal 
communications.    The Council’s induction programme also signposts to the above 
policies for new starters.  

The Head of the Paid Service, the Chief Financial Officer and the Monitoring Officer 
continue to meet on a monthly basis to ensure that there is a regular forum to 
ensure that the values of the authority are promoted and that good governance is 
demonstrated. 

Business ethics, values and culture are an important part of improving an 
organisation’s governance process and we continue to place great importance on 
this.  The Council will be furthering its work on culture and ethics as part of its 
response to the Staff Survey.  

Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny 
and managing risk 

The process for taking informed decisions has been reviewed over the course of the 
year with a clearer decision making process in place with the establishment the 
Policy Development and Decision Groups.  These Groups receive reports and make 
recommendations to the Mayor on Executive decisions.  The Mayor then, in the 
majority of cases, takes those decisions at meetings of the Policy Development and 
Decision Group.   

The Overview and Scrutiny Board has met throughout the year to hold the Mayor 
and Executive to account, and the Audit Committee has also met regularly. This aims 
to provide assurance within the decision making process.  

The Audit Committee has received the Internal Audit Plan together with updates on 
the progress against the Plan.  The Committee have received the Council’s Statement 
of Accounts and Treasury Management Strategy. 

The Performance and Risk Dashboards have been reviewed by the Committee on a 
regular basis.  The Committee have also been invited to a number of informal 
meetings with service managers in order to understand the derivation of the 
performance indicators.  The Committee continue to have the ability to refer 
suggested areas for further investigation to the Overview and Scrutiny Board. 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Board has undertaken a range of work from reviewing 
draft Policy Framework documents to matters arising from budget monitoring 
reports.  The Mayor has also referred matters to the Board for its comments.  Three 
decisions of the Mayor have been called-in over the course of 2016/2017.  

At the start of the year, overview and scrutiny liaison meetings were held between 
senior officers and Overview and Scrutiny Lead Members.  The liaison meeting for 
the Joint Commissioning Team has now been replaced with two Monitoring Working 
Parties – one for Children’s Services and one for Adult Services and Public Health.  

Page 21



11 
 

These meetings provide an informal opportunity to discuss forthcoming decisions, 
issues arising, and performance and financial monitoring information. 

Overview and Scrutiny Briefings are held to which all members of the Council are 
invited to attend.  This provides an opportunity to share information and identify 
issues which should be formally considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Board.   

The Council’s Information Asset Register has been reviewed and will be updated in 
line with policy developments and guidance but also to ensure links are made to 
relevant business continuity plans.  

The Performance and Risk Management Framework was reviewed as part of the LGA 
Corporate Peer Challenge in 2015 with a recommendation 'to ensure that the 
framework is effectively rolled out, and adding to the 'business' of the authority'.  
The subsequent internal audit report on Risk Management and Risk Recording (dated 
January 2017) found that Councillors and Senior Managers take the lead to ensure 
that approaches for addressing risk are being developed and implemented.  It also 
found that the Framework, as a methodology, was effective, well-structured and 
integrated with performance monitoring.   

However, the report also identified a number of areas that needed further 
development: 

 current risk registers do not make the link between the strategic risks and 
service / operational risk.  

 there is a lack of focus when identifying risks with significant risks to the 
achievement of key objectives needing to be fully understood so as to aid 
decision making and to help ensure that limited resources are effectively 
targeted.  

 There are inconsistencies in terms of monitoring and recording at strategic 
level along with a lack of integration with operational practices and risks.  

 
An improvement plan has been developed in response to the internal audit report 
and this is continuing to be implemented. 

Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective 

A full Member Induction Programme was put in place immediately post the Local 
Elections in May 2015.  Over the course of the year, the second phase of the 
Member Development Programme continued to build members’ focus on the 
strategic issues.  Following the LGA Peer Review and follow up visit, the Council 
devised an Action Plan which would assist the Council to embrace the opportunities 
and improvements identified.  A wide range of member development has been 
made available supported by the LGA.  

The Senior Leadership Team have kept the operation of their meetings under review 
over the course of the year and changed how they manage their agendas in order to 

Page 22



12 
 

increase their capacity to focus on those issues of strategic importance.  An 
Organisational Development Plan (including an SLT Development Plan) is in place. 

Workforce planning has been introduced for managers to assist them in identifying 
the learning and development requirements within their service areas.  Training for 
all staff on key policies, procedures and legislation is available through i-Learn, the 
Council’s online learning portal. 

The Council undertook a Staff Survey in September 2016.  Work has been 
undertaken with managers and staff to develop an action plan which will be 
delivered throughout Summer 2017. 

Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public 
accountability 

Consultation and service user engagement has continued to take place in relation to 
service change.  The majority of this work has been related to the proposals for 
budget savings.   

The Action Plan associated with the Communication, Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy has been implemented aimed at improving the way that the Council 
communicates, consults and engages with the residents of Torbay. 

The Torbay Strategic Partnership has been re-established.  There has been good 
engagement from partners, supported by resources from the Local Government 
Association.  There is a desire and intent to work together to develop plans to deliver 
the Partnership’s ambitions.  

The Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny Board has been published and 
considered by the Council. 

The Council has published as an appendix to this Statement its Review of the Year 
which describes the how is has achieved against the Corporate Plan and provides 
information on its financial statements.  The document also sets out the priority 
areas for the coming year.   The Statement of Accounts provides a Narrative Report 
which explains the Council’s achievements over the past alongside the Council’s 
financial performance. 

Securing continuous improvement in service delivery and ensuring that its agreed 
policies, priorities and decisions are implemented on time, in a manner consistent 
with the needs of its user and in the most effective way 

The Performance and Risk Dashboards (including progress against each action within 
the Corporate Plan Delivery Plans) have been reviewed every two months by the 
Senior Leadership Team, Mayor and Executive, Group Leaders and the Audit 
Committee.  This has enabled any areas of concern to be highlighted and recovery 
plans to be prepared, scrutinised and monitored. 

Page 23



13 
 

The Performance and Risk Group has continued to meet to encourage greater 
ownership of performance and risk generally. 

The Audit Committee review the Dashboards Performance every two months with 
the Committee referring matters by exception to the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
where it was felt that further investigation was required. 

Operational performance and risk continues to be monitored in business units with 
issues of concern being escalated through the Performance and Risk Group to the 
Senior Leadership Team.  This will be an area of focus for the coming year. 

The Children’s Improvement Board has continued to meet over the course of the 
year to ensure that the action plan in response to the January 2016 Ofsted 
Inspection of services is implemented.  Ofsted undertook a monitoring visit in 
December 2016 and the findings were that the Council was making appropriate 
progress in improving services for children and young people in need of help and 
protection in Torbay. 

The Government-appointed Children’s Commissioner has made recommendations to 
the Minister on the future operation of Children’s Services in Torbay and work will 
be undertaken during 2017/2018 on this issue. 

The Council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government (2010). 

Significant governance Issues 
 

The internal audit report on Sports Pitch Leases (dated January 2017 (although 
commenced during 2015/2016)) identified that improvements were required as 
there were a number of instances where controls and procedures did not adequately 
mitigate the risks identified. Existing procedures needed to be improved in order to 
ensure that they are fully reliable.  The overall opinion of “Improvements Required” 
was given following improvements made after the conclusion of the audit. 

As noted within the internal audit report, since the conclusion of the audit, progress 
has been made through identifying an asset management lead role who has 
intervened in many of the sports pitch leases reviewed during the audit and clarified 
instruction arrangements with the TDA.  As such, the issues and associated risks 
identified are now better mitigated.  In addition, a review of the Corporate Asset 
Management Plan is currently underway to ensure that it meets the intentions of the 
Corporate Plan. 

The internal audit report on Risk Management and Risk Recording (January 2017) 
gave an opinion of “Happening” with councillors and senior managers taking the lead 
to ensure that approaches for addressing risk are being developed and implemented.  

Page 24



14 
 

As detailed earlier in the Annual Governance Statement, an improvement plan is in 
place to ensure that: 

 there a links between the strategic and service/operational risks.  

 significant risks to the achievement of key objectives are fully understood  

 there is consistency in monitoring and recording risk at a strategic level 
(including integration with operational practices and risks).  

 
The draft internal audit report on Emergency Planning and Business Continuity 
(February 2017) found of 'Fundamental Weaknesses' in relation to corporate 
business continuity arrangements.  Whilst it was recognised that some progress had 
been made in this area, arrangements were not consistently robust, and have not 
been subject to full testing.  Therefore the report deemed that the arrangements 
were insufficient to ensure continuity of service corporately across all the Council's 
critical functions should an incident occur.  An action plan to address the 
recommendations within this draft internal audit report is in the process of being 
prepared and implemented.   

The draft internal audit report on TOR2 Commissioning (April 2017) has found that 
there were “Improvements Required”.  The Joint Venture Company (JVCo) provides 
over £10 million of services to the Council. The draft report is currently being 
considered and an action plan will be prepared.   

In addition to the above, there were a number of reviews undertaken by internal 
audit during the course of the year which found that improvements were required.  
In a number of cases management actions plans have been put in place and these 
will be monitored on a regular basis through discussions between the Chief Executive 
and appropriate Director or Assistant Director.  In those cases were management 
action plans have yet to be agreed, the Chief Executive will ensure that plans are 
developed as a matter of urgency.   

A tracking system to ensure that actions to address areas identified by Internal Audit 
as requiring improvement will be developed over the coming months and will be 
monitored by the Senior Leadership Team. 

Following the Ofsted Inspection of services for children in need of help and 
protection, children looked after and care leavers (January 2016) which judged 
services to be inadequate, the Council was subject to a Statutory Direction in May 
2016.  The direction appointed the Chief Executive of Hampshire County Council as 
Commissioner for Children’s Services in Torbay and requires the Council to co-
operate with the Commissioner in relation to the improvement of Children’s 
Services.  An Improvement Board chaired by the Commissioner with representatives 
from the Council and local partners has been formed to oversee the improvement 
process.  The Commissioner also reports on a quarterly basis to the Secretary of 
State on progress and work undertaken to develop an alternative delivery model for 
future service provision.  The direction will remain in place until such time as it is 
revoked by the Secretary of State.  Children’s Services are also subject to ongoing 
monitoring by Ofsted. 

Page 25



15 
 

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to 
further enhance our governance arrangements.  We are satisfied that these steps 
will address the issues identified and we will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review.   

 

Steve Parrock      Gordon Oliver 
Chief Executive     Elected Mayor of Torbay 

Page 26



Corporate Plan and Delivery Plans 2015-2019 
Achievements 2016/2017 

Introduction 
Torbay Council’s Corporate Plan was adopted in September 2015 and its associated Delivery Plans 

adopted in May 2016.  The Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s ambitions that, in order to create a 

Council which is fit for the challenges of the future, we will focus on creating a prosperous and 

healthy Torbay.  By focusing on these two ambitions, we can work towards ensuring that our 

communities are healthy and thrive. 

In October 2016, the Council also published its Efficiency Plan which set out how the Council will 

seek to achieve a sustainable financial position by 2020.  The Efficiency Plan describes the 

Transformation Programme which has been established to transform the way that the Council 

delivers services and strengthens the way it engages with customers and partners to improve 

outcome for its communities.  Many of the projects with the Transformation Programme are also 

shown in the Delivery Plans. 

This document sets out what the Council has achieved against each of its Targeted Actions over the 

course of the past year. 

Targeted Action 1: 

Protecting all children and giving them the best start in life 
 Developed our Children’s Services Improvement Plan which has been approved by Ofsted 

and the Children’s Improvement Board.  The Plan is now being implemented and when 

Ofsted visited in December 2016 they recognised that the council is making appropriate 

progress in improving services for children and young people. 

 The Council has agreed a revised Medium Term Financial Strategy for Children’s Services 

which aims to align activity to reduce costs with that underway to improve services and 

outcomes for children.  As a result of agreeing the Strategy, £576,000 of savings were 

identified for 2017/2018. 

 Over 450 members of Children’s Services staff and colleagues from partner agencies have 

undertaken “Signs of Safety” training as we embed this model into our service delivery. 

 Torbay’s schools are performing either at or above national comparators across all Key 

Stages. 

Targeted Action 2: 

Working towards a more prosperous Torbay 
 The Council has approved an Investment Strategy which aims, amongst other things, to 

invest capital resources within Torbay to stimulate growth through asset purchase, co 

investment in projects or capital loans. 

 The first investment has been agreed – the purchase of Wren Park in Torquay which will 

generate income of £450,000 per year.  This income will be used to support the delivery of 

Council services. 

 A Transformation Strategy for Torbay’s Town Centres has been agreed.  This aims to deliver 

and enable significant and successful regeneration of Torbay’s town centres.  The first 

Page 27

Agenda Item 8
Appendix 2



business case has been agreed – for the creation of student accommodation at Upton Place, 

Torbay. 

 The Strategic Partnership has been established to work together, providing cleat and 

focused place leadership.  The Partnership will be a strong, bold, unified voice with a shared 

narrative for Torbay. 

 The Port Masterplan continues to be delivered with improvements to the facilities for 

passenger boats and the installation of pontoons for fishermen at Torquay Harbour.  Options 

are also being explored for the refurbishment of South Quay and redevelopment of the 

Harbour Light restaurant at Paignton Harbour. 

 The Council’s Capital Plan has been agreed for 2017/2018 which will see £56.3 million spent 

on capital schemes across Torbay. 

 Transport improvements continue to be made with the traffic flow reversed in Torre and 

improvements to the Western Corridor and Edginswell Gateway have been completed. 

Targeted Action 3: 

Promoting healthy lifestyles across Torbay 
 Phase 1 of the Healthy Torbay Framework is in place meaning that activity across the Council 

has been co-ordinated to prevent ill health including a project to reduce isolation and 

wellbeing at work initiatives. 

 Local Partnerships have been established to oversee activity and measure progress in the 

key areas adult and child healthy weight and physical inactivity.   

 The Healthy Torbay Supplementary Planning Guidance has been approved which provides 

guidance on healthy design, active travel, healthy food environments, greenspaces and 

community investment areas. 

 Additional capacity through grant funding has been developed in partnership with the Office 

of the Police and Crime Commissioner for mental health and vulnerability for the 

Community Safety Partnership. 

Targeted Action 4: 

Ensuring Torbay remains an attractive and safe place to live and visit 
 The first Torbay Air Show was successfully delivered in June 2016 and attracted over 100,000 

visitors. 

 The Council delivered Torbay’s first festival, Grinagog, across multiple venues in April 2017. 

More than 4000 people attended the festival and feedback from accommodation providers,  

local bars and restaurants was positive in terms of the business it brought to them. 

 The Council saved £225,000 on its TOR2 contract by paying in advance – a saving which 

meant there was no negative impact on service users. 

 Shared services have been created with other local authorities for the delivery of building 

control and trading standards which will mean that the services are more resilient moving 

forward. 

 A new model of CCTV has been developed and the financial model is being finalised. 

 Reviews of Torre Abbey, Palace Theatre, the Velopark, Riviera International Conference 

Centre, libraries and Torbay Leisure Centre are in progress under the Transformation 

Programme. 

 Progress has been made in reviewing the different options for the delivery of public toilets in 

Torbay with a procurement exercise currently underway. 

Page 28



 

Targeted Action 5: 

Protecting and supporting vulnerable adults 
 Local Multi-agency Teams are in place in Torquay and Paignton/Brixham localities aimed at 

reducing the demand for acute services. 

 A Homeless Hospital Discharge Worker has been appointed who works with patients in the 

Emergency Department or wards of the hospital, who are homeless or vulnerably housed.  

These patients are supported to find suitable accommodation to ensure timely discharge 

from hospital and avoid emergency presentations to the Council’s Housing Options service. 

 The Council has secured £400,000 from the Government, over the next two years, to help 

address rough sleeping in Torbay. 

 The Council has agreed “in principle” to establish a Housing Company to develop and own 

homes, with the overarching aim of maximising income back to the Council, as well as 

supporting the objectives of the Council’s Housing Strategy.  

 Additional funding has been made available for the domestic abuse service. 

 The Council has devised new ways of working to provide its Crisis Support Scheme.  This 

means that the Council is still able to support those most in need but that the funds 

available to the Council will last much longer than originally anticipated. 

All Targeted Actions: 

Cross Cutting and Corporate Issues 
 The Council agreed a policy which changed the amount it sets aside for borrowing meaning 

that £790,000 of savings were identified in 2016/2017 with no impact on service users. 

 The establishment of a local lottery has been agreed which will enable local organisations to 

access a new funding stream given the Council’s reducing resources.  There are currently 53 

good causes registered. 

 

 

Page 29



Audit  Committee 

Torbay Council

Progress Report and Update 

Year ended 31 March 2017
May 2017

Alex Walling

Associate Director

T 0117 305 7804 

E  alex.j.walling@uk.gt.com

Mark Bartlett

Manager

T 0117 305 7896

E mark.bartlett@uk.gt.com

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 10



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

2© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 31



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

3© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Introduction

Members of the Audit Committee can find further useful material on our website www.grant-thornton.co.uk, where we have a 

section dedicated to our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications:

• The Board: creating and protecting value (April 2017);   http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-board-creating-

and-protecting-value/

• The income spectrum (March 2017); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-

leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/

• CFO Insights – reviewing council's 2015/16 spend (December 2016); http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/cfo-

insights-reviewing-councils-201516-spend/

• Fraud risk, 'adequate procedures', and local authorities (December 2016); 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/fraud-risk-adequate-procedures-and-local-authorities/

• Brexit: local government – transitioning successfully (December 2016) 

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/brexit-local-government--transitioning-successfully/

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to receive

regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or Engagement 

Manager.

This paper provides the Audit Committee with a report 

on progress in delivering our responsibilities as your 

external auditors. 

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be 

reported to you as part of our audit process. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may 

be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may 

affect your business or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your 

benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any 

responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content 

of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose.

P
age 32

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-board-creating-and-protecting-value/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-income-generation-report-local-leaders-are-ready-to-be-more-commercial/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/knowing-the-ropes--audit-committee-effectiveness-review-2015/


Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

4© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 18 May 2017

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Fee Letter 
We are required to issue a 'Planned fee letter for 2016/17' by the 

end of April 2016
April 2016 Yes The 2016/17 fee letter was issued in April 2016.

Accounts Audit Plan
We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the 

Council setting out our proposed approach in order to give an 

opinion on the Council's 2016/17 financial statements.

March 2017 Yes The Audit Plan was presented to your March meeting.

Interim accounts audit 
Our interim fieldwork visit plan included:

• updated review of the Council's control environment

• updated understanding of financial systems

• review of Internal Audit reports on core financial systems

• early work on emerging accounting issues

• early substantive testing

• Value for Money conclusion risk assessment.

January 2017 Yes
The results of the interim audit were reported in the Audit Plan, which 

was reported to your March meeting.

Final accounts audit
Including:

• audit of the 2016/17 financial statements

• proposed opinion on the Council's accounts

• proposed Value for Money conclusion

• review of the Council's disclosures in the consolidated accounts 

against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 

the United Kingdom 2016/17  

June – July 2017 Not yet due

We will undertake work on your draft financial statements to provide an 

opinion by end of July 2017, in advance of the statutory deadline of 30 

September 2017. The final accounts audit is scheduled to start on 5 

June 2017. 

P
age 33



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

5© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Progress at 9 March 2017

2016/17 work Planned Date Complete? Comments

Value for Money (VfM) conclusion
The scope of our work is unchanged to 2015/16 and is set out in the final 
guidance issued by the National Audit Office in November 2015. The Code 
requires auditors to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as; "in all significant respects, the 
audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes 
for taxpayers and local people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

Jan – June 2017 Not yet due

The results of our initial risk assessment 
were reported in our audit plan which was 
reported to your March meeting.
The results of our VfM audit work and the key 
messages arising will be reported in our Audit 
Findings Report to your July meeting.

Other areas of work

• Housing benefits subsidy claim

• Teachers’ Pension return

Aug – Nov 2017

Nov 2017

Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

We will summarise all the work completed as part of our 2016/17 audit within one 

letter which will be issued after the opinion. 

October 2017 Not yet due

Grant Thornton events
• We held an Income Generation workshop in Exeter on 13 October 2016. The aim of these events is to bring together senior leaders from local government and the private and investment 

sectors to stimulate cross-sector debate and consider current and future funding models. The workshop was attended by your Head of Finance.

• We held a Faster Close and Highways Network Asset (HNA) workshop on 19 October 2016 in Exeter. This workshop was aimed at local authority practitioners and will consider the main 

factors for authorities to consider in accelerating their financial reporting procedures to produce their year-end accounts, and provided training on the latest developments in accounting for the 

HNA in 2016/17. The workshop was attended by members of Council's Finance team, and the Head of Finance did a joint presentation with your Audit Manager on how we worked together to 

achieve approval of the audited accounts by 31 July in 2015/16.

• Our Joint Venture Seminar was held in Taunton on 6 December 2016, which provided an insight into setting up and running JVs and was attended by 22 officers and members from Councils in 

the South West, including your Head of Finance. 

• We held our own local government accounts workshops on 2016/17. Local events were held in Plymouth on 28 February and in Bristol on 1 March.  Your Head of Finance and Finance 

Manager (Technical & Budgeting) attended the Plymouth workshop.

P
age 34



Grant Thornton

P
age 35



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

7© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The income spectrum
Helping local authorities to achieve revenue and strategic objectives to create a vibrant economies

Grant Thornton market insight

Income generation is increasingly an essential part of the solution to providing sustainable local services, alongside managing demand 

reduction and cost efficiency. Our report gives local authorities the tools needed to maximise their ability to do so.

Our new research on income generation which includes our CFO Insights too suggests that:

• councils are increasingly using income generation to diversify their funding base, and are commercialising in a 

variety of ways. This ranges from fees and charges (household garden waste, car parking, private use of 

public spaces), asset management (utilities, personnel, advertising, wifi concession license) and company 

spin-offs (housing, energy, local challenger banks), through to treasury investments (real estate development, 

solar farms, equity investment).

• the ideal scenario to commercialise is investing to earn with a financial and social return. Councils are now 

striving to generate income in way which achieves multiple strategic outcomes for the same spend; 

examining options to balance budgets while simultaneously boosting growth, supporting vulnerable 

communities and protecting the environment.

• stronger commercialisation offers real potential for councils to meet revenue and strategic challenges for 

2020 onwards. Whilst there are examples of good practice and innovation, this opportunity is not being fully 

exploited across the sector due to an absence of a holistic and integrated approach to corporate strategy 

development (a common vision for success, understanding current performance, selecting appropriate new 

opportunities, the capacity and culture to deliver change). 

To support local authorities as they develop income generation strategies, the report provides:

• case study examples

• local authority spend analysis

• examples of innovative financial mechanisms

• critical success factors to consider

P
age 36



Audit Committee progress report and  update – Torbay Council

8© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

The Board: creating and protecting value
Our new cross sector Board Effectiveness Report

In all sectors, boards are increasingly coming under pressure from both the market and regulators in terms of effectiveness and 

accountability. Building on the success of our cross sector audit committee effectiveness survey- Knowing The Ropes, the Grant 

Thornton Governance Institute extended its research to look at the effectiveness of boards across the corporate, public and not 

for profit sectors.

This report raise key questions that all boards should ask themselves to challenge their effectiveness. Their organisations may 

operate in different sectors and be subject to a variety of statutory and governance requirements, but they all share a common 

overriding principle: the governing body is a collective charged with developing the organisation’s purpose.

Key messages:

• There is a strong future focus on boards

• Executive behaviours tend to dominate - not the best scenario for good governance or an organisation’s future focus

• There are strongly held opinions about the relationship between the board and the executive which will impact on efficiency

• More than 88% of respondents see their executives as being strong leaders of the organisation

• There is a clear focus on organisational culture and values across all sectors – 93% see the executive board members 

modelling the values of the organisation

• Non-executives also need to live and breathe those values – only 82% of respondents agreed that the non-executives inspire 

and guide the executive to realise the organisation’s purpose

• Only 75% of respondents feel that the recruitment process of non-executives is rigorous, well-documented or transparent

• Over 60% of board members believe that are adequate processes in place to evaluate performance

This report uses the DLMA analysis which categorises skills into four areas: Directorship, Leadership, Management and 

Assurance. This framework allows organisations to have a better understanding about where they are focusing their energies.

Download the report here: http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-board-creating-and-protecting-value/

Grant Thornton reports

Challenge question: 

Are you familiar with 

this report?

P
age 37

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/the-board-creating-and-protecting-value/


‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms 

provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or 

more member firms, as the context requires. 

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd 

(GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. 

GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 

of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or 

omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved | Draft

P
age 38


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Audit Committee Terms of Reference
	8 Annual Governance Statement 2016/2017
	Annual Governance Statement Appendix 1
	Annual Governance Statement Appendix 2

	10 Progress Report and Update Year ended 31 March 2017

